
A.2 - 1 
ZONING CHANGE REVIEW SHEET 

 
CASE NUMBER: C14H-2016-0099 HLC DATE:  October 24, 2016 
 PC DATE:   
     
APPLICANT:  Veronica Allbright, owner 
 
HISTORIC NAME:  Dawson-Tinnin House 
 
WATERSHED:  Lady Bird Lake 
 
ADDRESS OF PROPOSED ZONING CHANGE:  905 Dawson Road 
 
ZONING FROM:  SF-3-NP to SF-3-H-NP 
 
SUMMARY STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends the  proposed zoning change 
from single family residence, neighborhood plan (SF-3-NP) combining district to single 
family residence – Historic Landmark – neighborhood plan (SF-3-H-NP) combining district 
zoning. 
 
QUALIFICATIONS FOR LANDMARK DESIGNATION: 
Architecture and historical associations. 
 
HISTORIC LANDMARK COMMISSION ACTION:   
 
PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION:   
 
DEPARTMENT COMMENTS:  The house is beyond the bounds of the Comprehensive 
Cultural Resources Survey (1984). 
CITY COUNCIL DATE:     ACTION: 
 
ORDINANCE READINGS: 1ST  2ND 3RD    ORDINANCE NUMBER: 
 
CASE MANAGER:  Steve Sadowsky     PHONE:  974-6454 
 
NEIGHBORHOOD ORGANIZATION:  Bouldin Creek Neighborhood Association 
 
BASIS FOR RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Architecture:  
One-story, roughly rectangular-plan, side-gabled stone veneered house with minimal Tudor 
Revival detailing, especially in the prominent front-gabled bay containing the principal 
entry. battered stone exterior chimney to the left of the principal entry, and single and 
paired 1:1 fenestration, some with a diamond-shape in the upper “sash.”  The stone veneer 
on the house is said to have come from the Dawson family properties further south near 
Manchaca, Texas. 
Historical Associations: 
Staff believes the house was built around 1937, although the property owner believes it is 
earlier than that, and dates from before 1920.  Staff’s determination of the date of 
construction is based upon the occupancy records from city directories, the water service 
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permit for this address dating from 1937, as well as the architectural style of the house, 
which is consistent with a 1930s construction date. 

 
Building permit to Nicholas A. Dawson for the construction of this house as well as the 

house at 901 Dawson Road. 
 
However, the discrepancy in the possible dates of construction for this house do not 
overshadow its importance to the history of South Austin, as the house was built by the 
Dawson family, and remained in the family until being sold to the current owner in the 
1970s. 
 
Nicholas Dawson was born in Pennsylvania, and led a very colorful life.  At the age of 19, he 
left home and moved to Lexington, Missouri, where he built a cabin and obtained work as a 
teacher.  He then decided to go to California in 1841, then to Veracruz, Mexico in 1843 
before returning to Pennsylvania.  He moved to Arkansas to teach school in 1846, and 
married a former pupil named Margaret Wright.  He and his brother-in-law then went to 
California again during the Gold Rush, but decided that he would rather live in Texas.  He 
and Margaret moved to Austin in 1851 and purchased land out of the Isaac Decker League 
in South Austin. 
 
Beginning in the 1880s, Dawson became a home builder, constructing homes in what is now 
the West Line National Register Historic District on W. 9th and W. 10th Streets, including 
several landmarked structures.  Dawson’s signature style was a one-story stone house with 
typical architectural embellishments of the time.  His children got involved in the family 
business, and continued to build homes and develop new areas of the city after Nicholas 
Dawson passed away in 1903.  In particular, the Dawson children focused on South Austin 
near Bouldin Creek, where they built several of the archetypal stone houses that are now 
city historic landmarks in the 1880s and 1890s.  Dawson’s son, Nicholas A. Dawson, who 
apparently went by Nick, was the principal force in the family’s development of South 
Austin neighborhoods, including South Heights, which was platted in 1894, and is located 
where Dawson Road is now.  Nick Dawson also got his children involved in the family 
enterprises, and gave them land for their livelihoods.  Especially noteworthy was the fact 
that Nick Dawson gave land to his daughters as well as to his sons, ensuring that his 
daughters would have their own incomes from the sale or construction of rental properties 
on their land. 
 
The house at 905 Dawson Road, which staff believes was built in 1937, was on property 
that was devised from Nick Dawson to his children, in particular, two daughters, Ruth 
Dawson (later Ruth Dawson Tinnin) and Jane Dawson (later Jane Dawson Parker).  The 
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1937 water permit for this house shows N.A. (Nick) Dawson as the applicant; the 1939 
sewer service application for this address references ownership by Jane D. (Dawson) 
Parker.  At some point, Jane Dawson Parker turned over the ownership of this property to 
her sister Ruth, in whose family the property remained until the 1970s, when it was 
purchased by the current owner. 
 
This house, as well as the house at 901 Dawson Road (demolished in 2015) were two of the 
Dawson family houses that were built as rental properties.  Both houses featured a stone 
veneer exterior, hearkening back to the stone houses built by Nicholas Dawson in Old West 
Austin and by N.A. and Nannie Dawson in South Austin at the turn of the century.  Ruth 
Dawson Tinnin lived in Louisiana and San Antonio for much of the mid-20th century, but 
retained this house as a rental property, providing her with income.  It is important to note 
that the Dawsons built (and rented) these houses for middle class families.  Their earlier 
houses in Old West Austin were large houses for the upper class, but these houses in South 
Austin were smaller, more modest, and more suited for working- and middle class families.  
A review of the occupancy history of this house from 1937 onward reflects the family’s 
philosophy – their tenants, some of whom stayed renters in this house for long periods of 
time, included a mail carrier, a painter and his beauty-shop owning wife (she had her 
beauty shop on this property), carpenters, and plumbers.  Beginning around 1943, the 
house was rented by Catherine A. Hamilton, who was probably either separated or 
divorced, and worked as a telephone operator for many years.  Catherine Hamilton lived 
here until the mid-1950s.  A contractor for Nash-Phillips-Copus rented the house in the late 
1950s, the then from around 1960 until around 1970, it was rented by Lee S. and Mary A. 
Lewis.  He was a heavy equipment operator for a construction company.  There were other 
renters in the 1970s, including the current owner, who purchased the house from the niece 
of Ruth Dawson Tinnin, in 1977. 
 

 
Obituary of Ruth Dawson Tinnin 

Austin American-Statesman, September 16, 1976 
 
PARCEL NO.:  0102020801 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  LOT 19-21 BLK 4 ARBOLES ESTATE SEC 3 
  
ESTIMATED ANNUAL TAX ABATEMENT: $8,319  (owner-occupied); city portion: $2,482.  
The values for this property fall just short of the capping amount. 
 
APPRAISED VALUE:  $737,724 
 



A.2 - 4 
PRESENT USE:  Residence 
 
CONDITION:  Excellent 
 
PRESENT OWNERS:   
Veronica Lee Allbright 
905 Dawson Road 
Austin, Texas 78704 
 
DATE BUILT:  ca. 1937 
 
ALTERATIONS/ADDITIONS:  An addition was constructed in 1998; a loft was created in 
2002 using the remains of a demolished outbuilding. 
 
ORIGINAL OWNER(S):  Ruth Dawson Tinnin and Jane Dawson Parker 
 
OTHER HISTORICAL DESIGNATIONS:   None. 
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LOCATION MAP 
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